药物临床试验适应性设计指导原则 (试行)

January 2021

目 录

I. Overview1
2. Factors to be considered in adaptive design2
(1) Applicability
(2) Reasonability
(3) Integrity
(4) Feasibility
3. Commonly used adaptive designs7
(1) Group sequential design7
(2) Re-estimation of sample size8
(3) Design of adaptive seamless dose selection10
(4) Adaptive enrichment design12
(5) Two-stage adaptive design13
(6) Experimental design of the adaptable main plan14
(7) Multiple adaptive design16
4. Other considerations
(1) Modifications based only on external data16
(2) Other regulatory considerations17
5. References19
Appendix: Glossary25

药物临床试验适应性设计指导原则

I. Overview

The design of confirmatory clinical trials is generally based on the results of preliminary exploratory studies. Many times rely on very limited data, which can result in design elements

There is a large deviation, which directly affects the success or failure of the experiment. With drug development

With the promotion of clinical research, technical methods of clinical research have been continuously developed, and adaptive design

It is also subject to more and more research and applications. Adaptable design allows for trial periods to be

Modify the experimental design based on the data accumulated over time to correct deviations from the initial design.

Thereby increasing the success rate of the test and improving the efficiency of the test.

Group sequential design is the earliest adaptive design used in clinical trials.

Later, adaptive design was more widely used to re-estimate the sample size, and now it is gradually

It has been popularized and developed into various types of experimental designs, such as two-stage design, flat

More complex designs such as bench test design. As theoretical methods continue to mature,

With the improvement of simulation and computing capabilities, as well as the accumulation of practical experience, adaptive design

Counters are increasingly used in clinical trials.

This guideline defines adaptive design as:

plan and use the data accumulated during the trial to respond to the trial in the interim analysis

Modified clinical trial design. On the one hand, adaptive modification is "according to preset

"plan" rather than a temporary modification plan; on the other hand,

Adaptive modification is a self-learning process, that is, through constant changes in accumulated data

Continuously learn and modify experimental protocols accordingly to adapt to the changing research environment.

1

Therefore, adaptive design aims to better improve ongoing clinical trials without

It is done due to flaws in the design itself that are highly likely to lead to clinical trial failure.

Temporary remedy.

In practice, sometimes a decision is made based on sufficient and reasonable external data. modifications to a clinical trial in a clinical trial if such modifications are based solely on external data, It is not within the scope of adaptive design according to the definition of this guideline. This refers to The guidelines focus on discussing the basic concepts and principles of adaptive design, commonly used adaptive Adaptive design types, considerations when using adaptive design, and regulatory requirements etc., with the purpose of guiding and standardizing how sponsors adopt and implement adaptive design. When designing an adaptive clinical trial plan, the sponsor should also refer to other relevant ICH guidelines and national guidelines. This guideline mainly applies to pharmaceutical Confirmatory clinical trials of products are also of reference significance for exploratory research. Book The guiding principles only represent the current views and understanding. As research and understanding deepen, It will be revised and improved.

2. Factors to be considered in adaptive design

Before deciding whether to adopt adaptive design, weigh the appropriateness thoroughly and thoroughly. The advantages and disadvantages between adaptive design and traditional design, especially the role of adaptive design in design, complexity in implementation and statistical analysis, and the resulting unavoidable operational bias and various other challenges that may be introduced during implementation. The adoption of adaptive design requires comprehensive consideration of many factors, especially the fitness for purpose, validity, completeness

(integrity) and feasibility (feasibility).

(1) Applicability

The suitability of an adaptive design refers to whether the planned experiment is suitable for use Adaptable design. Generally speaking, confirmatory clinical trials require good and appropriate testing Experimental design, including trial objectives, subject population, enrollment allocation, primary endpoint, Analytical methods and many other aspects, deviations in each link may lead to Test failed. Although adaptive design can achieve self-learning, re-evaluation of current Pre-test plans and can adjust design deviations to find better methods to achieve the same goal, but it was not designed to address the mistake.

Whether to adopt adaptive design, you should first consider what kind of adaptation is needed modification, what kind of data, what kind of hypothesis to test, what kind of decision-making methods, what conditions enable it to be implemented in practice, etc. If one adapts Sexual design cannot bring about the expected increase in test efficiency and improvement in test quality. Or if it is extremely difficult to implement, the design is not suitable. also, Adaptive design requires investing a lot of time in the design phase for in-depth research. Research and plan carefully.

Most adaptive design methods are designed to meet the specific needs of clinical trials

And generated, may not possess certain optimal properties in statistical theory, but it may be the most appropriate way to solve a particular problem in a clinical trial, so before considering Adaptive design should be based primarily on the special problems that need to be solved. In addition, suitable Adaptive design clinical trials are more complex and complex than traditional trials in operation and implementation. Difficulty, therefore, the simplicity of experimental design methods sometimes becomes a factor in whether to adopt appropriate An important consideration in responsive design.

(2) Reasonability

The rationality of the adaptive design refers to whether the overall Type I error rate of the experiment can be obtained control, and the ability to ensure the credibility, interpretability and persuasiveness of trial results.

To judge whether the adaptive design is reasonable, the most important criterion is the system used. Whether the calculation method can control the overall Type I error rate. Adaptive modification generally requires consideration of the system The problem of multiplicity of the test is to be considered, and the Type I error rate of the test needs to be controlled in advance. set level. In addition, for some adaptive designs, if bilateral test, because *the p* -values before and after adaptive modification cannot reflect the comparison between groups. direction, potentially making the meaning of the final overall *p*- value difficult to interpret, to avoid In this case, one-sided testing can be selected in the experimental plan; but for other adaptations Sexual design, such as asymmetric two-sided hypothesis, two-sided test would be a more appropriate choice

select.

Keeping experiments justified also means having the right statistical inference methods

method, such as for calculating adjusted p-values, estimated effect sizes, and confidence intervals,

and measuring the consistency of treatment effects at different stages.

Adaptive design may involve multiple target groups, multiple hypotheses, multiple

end point or multiple tests, so it has a high degree of rationality in the statistical analysis method.

Require. If there is no corresponding reasonable statistical method for adaptive modification, it is not appropriate

Use this design. Due to the complexity of adaptive design, in some cases there is no

There are applicable theoretical formulas or analytical formulas for statistical inference, which need to be based on simulation methods.

method to verify the rationality of statistical methods, which to a certain extent adds additional Certainty.

If adaptive design requires merging data before and after adjustment, then it is necessary to consider Consider the rationality of data merging (including differences between before and after data and merging methods, etc.) and the interpretability of pooled efficacy estimates. If the final system of adaptive modification Although the test results are positive, the clinical benefit is too small and insufficient to support the verification of drug efficacy.

(3) Integrity

The integrity of adaptive design refers to whether it can control the

introduced bias. Maintaining the integrity of the trial means following predetermined

Plan to make adjustments to the protocol and maintain blinding of interim analysis results to maximize

Minimize operational bias.

Avoiding the introduction of operational bias is the most basic requirement for all clinical trials. adapt Because the sexual design involves modifications in many aspects of clinical trials, it may affect subsequent The execution of the test adds an additional layer of difficulty to maintaining the integrity of the test. therefore In confirmatory trials, interim analyzes of adaptive designs should generally be performed by independent Data Monitoring Committee (DMC) and its application

It is completed by an independent statistical support team other than the organizer and guarantees the results of the interim analysis. Not be known to the sponsor, investigators and subjects so as not to affect subsequent trials Implementation and introduction of operational bias. Since adaptive modification involves multiple links, a An effective firewall to prevent the leakage of interim analysis results and possible manipulation Operating bias is the most important task in execution. To this end, adaptive design solutions Should contain a complete operational process, especially information on how to set it up

access rights. At the same time, in order to avoid the influence of uncontrollable factors on the test results,

Also consider how to avoid being indirectly pushed out of the period based on changes made to the trial.

The results of the analysis. Sponsors should be prepared to conduct all required standard operating procedures for the trial

process, and include relevant processes involving adaptive modifications, and record them at the same time.

The actual operation process. All of the above should be carefully considered during the design phase of the trial.

considerations and need to be strictly implemented during the test to avoid affecting the integrity of the test.

sex.

(4) Feasibility

The feasibility of adaptive design refers to whether the adaptive modification of the experiment can be implemented in practice. Implemented internationally. Since adaptive design is more complex than traditional design, and implementation and analysis are more difficult and may need to be considered before planning to adopt adaptive design Consider the following factors: The adaptive adjustment strategy can ensure the rationality and integrity of the trial sex; relative to the test period, there is sufficient time to analyze the accumulated data from the test Make adaptive modifications and carry out follow-up experiments based on the analysis results; mid-term data collection Sets and data cleansing can be completed quickly so that interim analysis can be completed on schedule and adjustments; have the ability to quickly modify randomization procedures/drug supply systems; have the ability to manage adequate drug supplies and be able to afford increased drug supplies; Prepare an adaptively designed data collection system in advance; ensure coordination with all relevant parties Communicate smoothly and effectively; be able to equip professional software to complete complex designs and related analysis Analytical calculations, etc. At the same time, during the trial design phase, the sponsor can also communicate with the study Communicate with stakeholders and evaluate whether the adaptive design under consideration can proceed smoothly in practice. count. In summary, if you plan to adopt adaptive design, you need to carefully evaluate its Are there any advantages? If decisions cannot be made, simulation methods can be used to assess adaptation efficiency of sexual design. If the adaptive design does not reflect many advantages after evaluation,

feasibility. If the relevant adaptation modifications are difficult to implement, other options should be considered

situation, it is recommended to carefully consider adaptive

design. 3. Commonly used adaptive designs

(1) Group sequential design

Group sequential design means that the plan is pre-planned to be carried out during the experiment.

One or more interim analyses, with follow-up decisions based on the results of each interim analysis

Trial decision-making usually has four possibilities: ÿ Terminate the trial based on superiority;

ÿ Terminate the test based on ineffectiveness; ÿ Terminate the test based on safety; ÿ Continue the trial

test. The timing of interim analysis is generally based on the proportion of accumulated data, such as subjects entering

Group proportion or proportion of the number of target events that occurred, or calendar time. If midterm

If there is at least one superiority analysis and there is a possibility of early termination of the trial, then the

Adjust the type I error rate of the analysis to control the overall type I error rate within the preset

level. Common methods to adjust the Type I error rate include Pocock's method, O'Brien

& Fleming method and Lan & DeMets method, etc. Since the interim analysis only uses

Part of the data was used, and the results still have large uncertainties. To evaluate early superiority

It is generally recommended to use a more conservative approach in order to increase the efficacy when terminating the trial.

reliability of the conclusion. The setting of invalidity boundaries is divided into binding and non-binding. binding

Boundary The trial must be terminated once the results of the interim analysis cross the futility boundary.

Unbound boundaries generally terminate when interim analysis results cross the invalidity boundary. trial, but in some cases based on a comprehensive evaluation by an independent data monitoring committee It can still be recommended that the trial continue. For unbound boundaries, no need to adjust the maximum Type I error rate for the final analysis.

The choice of timing for interim analysis also needs to be carefully considered. If grouped sequentially In the overall plan, there is the possibility of early termination of the trial based on superiority, and the selection of time points Consideration should be given to whether the amount of data at the interim analysis is sufficient and whether the follow-up period Sufficient to provide reliable efficacy estimates and safety assessment results, and also Estimates of important secondary endpoints as well as some important subgroup outcomes are included. If expected The mid-term analysis is to verify the safety and effectiveness of the drug, and the time point should focus on

on how to best protect subjects.

(2) Re-estimation of sample size

Sample size re-estimation refers to the use of a pre-set interim analysis plan to Recalculate the sample size using accumulated trial data to ensure final statistical testing Able to achieve pre-set goals or modified goals while also being able to control I Class error rate. Estimates of initial sample size often depend on effect size, variation in primary endpoint degree, trial follow-up time, subject dropout rate and many other factors, which often

Based on previous research data. In most cases, the sample size during the trial design phase

The parameter information required for estimation is often insufficient, which may lead to sample size estimation.

The calculation is not accurate enough. Sample size re-estimation in adaptive designs for this type of problem

Provides effective solutions.

Sample size re-estimation methods can be divided into blind methods and non-blind methods.

Law.

Blind method, also known as non-comparative analysis method (non-comparative

analysis), an interim analysis that does not use information from the actual trial groupings, or

The authors did not conduct any analysis involving comparisons between groups.

The blind method re-estimates the sample size by calculating

important parameters of sample size (such as pooled variance or pooled event rates), then

Re-estimate the sample size. Because the efficacy ratio between groups was not involved in the interim analysis

Comparatively, there is generally no need to adjust the Type I error rate. This method is relatively easy to implement,

Generally, operational bias will not be introduced, and the relevant statistical methods are relatively complete.

All it takes is pre-planning during the trial design phase. Sample size for blind method

Reestimation can also be done by the sponsor.

Non-blind method, also called comparative analysis method (comparative analysis),

Refers to the use of trial grouping information (including the real names of each group) in the interim analysis

or distinguishable grouping codes), the analysis involves comparisons between groups.

Sample size re-estimation for unblinded methods is based on cumulative data and

group information, calculate important parameters of sample size (such as trial effect size), and then

The sample size was re-estimated because the interim analysis involves comparison of efficacy between groups.

Type I error rates usually need to be adjusted accordingly.

Sample size re-estimates for unblinded analyzes need to be included in the study protocol in advance

Clarification, including timing of re-estimation, criteria used in decision-making, re-estimation

methods used when testing, methods for adjusting inspection level ÿ, methods for performing non-blind analysis

personnel, as well as those who perform the entire operation process, etc. It should be noted that a It is not advisable to re-estimate the sample size too many times in an experiment. when reassessed When the sample size is less than the originally designed sample size, a reduction in sample size is generally not accepted. Adjustment.

Whether to use unblinded sample size re-estimation depends on several factors. example For example, if there is relatively reliable early data, the sample size can be re-estimated in a non-blinded manner. Whether it is necessary; the cost of using unblinded sample size re-estimation (such as inspection level adjustment) Whole) Compared with slightly enlarging the sample size in the initial design, is it beneficial? Mid-term analysis Can the analysis be completed quickly? Is it possible that there is not enough time due to the rapid enrollment? Time is used to adjust the experiment; whether the time node and inference method of the interim analysis are reasonable; Whether the existing data can support the planned interim analysis, etc. Therefore, it should be based on Characteristics of the trial itself, carefully consider various factors, and then make appropriate decisions.

(3) Design of adaptive seamless dose selection

The design of adaptive seamless dose selection refers to the seamless connection of two trials,

Dose selection is made at the end of the early phase trial and the selected dose is used in the later phase trial.

The final analysis included all subjects enrolled in both the early and late trials.

Subject's data. This guideline uses Phase II/III trials as an example of adaptive seamless

The design of dose selection is explained and can be used as a reference for other seamless design situations.

In traditional designs, independent phase II dose selection typically involves multiple agents

Dosage group, the purpose is to select the appropriate dose and use it in phase III trials. Phase III trial

is a separate trial from the Phase II trial, and its final analysis does not include results from the Phase II trial.

data. Phase II/III trials with this specific goal are also often referred to as Phase II/III operations

Seamless design. Operational seamless design excludes subjects from Phase II trials from Phase III type I error is not required in the final analysis of phase III Rate adjustment. Another type of design, called Phase II/III extrapolated seamless design, refers to the The final analysis included all subjects from phase II trials at selected and unselected doses. tester. Adaptable Phase II/III extrapolated seamless dose selection is designed to extrapolate seamless Special case of design. This design has many advantages, such as shortening the length of the The time interval between the end of the Phase II trial and the start of the Phase III trial, reduction of trials The total sample size, shorten the duration of the test, reduce the cost of the test, etc. at the same time, Because subjects enrolled in Phase II have longer follow-up times, it is sometimes possible to observe earlier.

The long-term safety of the drug was observed.

Designs using adaptive phase II/III seamless dose selection require multiple considerations.

factor. Since the phase II data may not be fully and in-depth during the interim analysis,

Analysis, if you know little about the experimental drug, you should generally choose to adapt it carefully.

The design of seamless dose selection for phase II/III phase II, because the data from phase II trials need to include

Adding to the final analysis that Phase III trials are already underway, and if using

Two separate trials can have more options. There are also some factors, such as

For example, the primary endpoint of a Phase III trial requires a longer follow-up period, while a Phase II trial may only

A surrogate endpoint can be used to make judgments when the surrogate endpoint is not related to the primary endpoint.

When surrogate endpoints are used to select doses for phase III trials, there are significant consequences

Big uncertainty. As another example, it should also be considered whether there is sufficient production capacity in the short term

Provide drugs required for Phase III within the time limit.

The design of adaptive phase II/III seamless dose selection discussed above can also

Directly applicable to other similar trials, such as combination and single drug selection,

Or the choice between different drugs, etc.

(4) Adaptable enrichment design

An adaptive enrichment design means that the trial will be based on the results of the interim analysis, based on

Pre-set criteria are adapted to the target population to determine post-trial

The target group for the continued stage. Subsequent phases of the trial may continue to include the entire population.

OK, or only enroll subgroups and may need to make some corresponding adaptive adjustments.

Or increase the sample size and continue to enroll the entire population, which will also naturally increase the number of sub-

The number of people joining the group. The final analysis target of the trial may only be the entire population or subgroups,

Or both the entire population and subpopulations are included. The final analysis of the trial will include both

The data of all subjects enrolled in each stage, and there are corresponding adjustment methods to control

Type I error rate.

If the investigational drug is known to be effective only for a specific subpopulation, then clinical trials
The trial should only recruit subjects from this subpopulation. But in practice, the more common situation is
It is possible that the experimental drug has a greater effect on a certain subgroup, but it is not clear how effective it will be on the entire population.
Is the group also effective enough? In this case, if the test drug is
If there is a large enough therapeutic effect in the entire population, enrolling only a subgroup of subjects will lose the efficacy.
The chance of being effective for the entire population; if the trial drug is less effective for the entire population but is less effective for a certain
It is effective for subgroups, and it is very likely that subjects enrolled in the entire population will not obtain the expected positive results.

results, and also loses the opportunity to show efficacy for subpopulations. adaptive enrichment

Designs to select target populations can take into account both, taking advantage of the results of the trial itself

This will allow us to select the target population more scientifically and increase the success of drug research and development.

Rate.

Since the selection of the target population in the adaptive enrichment design involves the entire population and sub-

groups, as well as interim analysis using unblinded comparisons between groups, so they should be clearly

Define the statistical assumptions and corresponding statistical methods for the two populations and control Class I

Error rate.

The selection criteria for the target population can be based on disease characteristics, prognostic biological

markers or predictive biomarkers. Generally speaking, the accepted

disease-related characteristics or prognosis-related biomarkers to select target groups and try

The design and operation of the experiment will be relatively simple. Currently, predictive biomarkers are used to

There is an increasing number of studies on selecting target populations, but many predictive biomarkers

The bed value is unclear. If a trial were to use a new predictive biomarker

To select the target population, corresponding diagnostic methods must be available. Diagnostic methods used

It must have been approved for marketing by the regulatory authorities. If not, it may need to be developed at the same time.

hair.

(5) Two-stage adaptive design

Two-stage adaptive design refers to dividing an experiment into two stages.

The stage before adaptation is stage 1, and the stage after adaptation is stage 2. at 1st

An interim analysis will be conducted at the end of the stage, and based on the preset modification plan, the

Phase 2 trials were adapted.

The group sequential design discussed above (if there is only one interim analysis), sample

Cost re-estimation, adaptability Design of seamless dose selection for phase II/III, adaptability

Enrichment designs are both two-stage adaptive designs. Two-stage adaptive design also includes Other common designs, such as starting from Phase 1 during the interim analysis at the end of Phase 1 Select an appropriate primary endpoint for Phase 2; select an appropriate primary endpoint from Phase 1 Select an appropriate target subgroup from two or more target subgroups for Stage 2 paragraph; modify the single main hypothesis in stage 1 to multiple main hypotheses, etc. There are two points to note: First, group sequential design and adaptive group sequential design There are differences between designs. Both are only included in interim analysis, early termination of trials and samples. Cost quantities are re-estimated similarly; if an adaptive group sequential design includes other If other adaptive modifications are made, the standard analysis method in group sequential design will not be suitable. use. Another point is that when a two-stage adaptive design analyzes survival with survival as the end point, During the trial, no matter at which stage the endpoint event of the subjects enrolled in stage 1 occurred segment, they should be included in the results of the first stage when calculating, otherwise the results of the two stages The independence assumption will no longer hold, resulting in an increased Type I error rate. Most adaptive designs fall into the two-phase category. Two-stage adaptive design The principles and methods of design can be similarly extended to multi-stage or multi-adaptive design. (6) Experimental design of adaptive main plan The main protocol trial design refers to an overall clinical trial protocol containing multiple sub-

Program, different sub-programs can test the clinical efficacy of a drug on multiple diseases at the same time clinical effect, and can also test the clinical effect of multiple drugs on a disease at the same time.

Or test the clinical effects of multiple drugs on multiple diseases at the same time. every sub

The protocol can be a single-arm trial or a randomized controlled trial. If there is a child

The cases are randomized controlled trials and the patient groups are the same. These randomized controlled trials are likely to

They can share a control group, or they may have separate control groups. The main program test is also
Used to refer broadly to patient-specific characteristics (e.g., disease, histological type, molecular markers
clinical trials as markers. Master protocol trials have many advantages, such as the ability to
able to provide patients with the greatest chance of enrollment and selection of the most appropriate trial drug
Chance. Common main scheme designs include basket test, umbrella test and platform test
experimental design.
Basket designs are designed to evaluate a drug therapy with the same biological profile
clinical effects on different disease types, each sub-program targets one or more
disease type. Umbrella designs are designed to evaluate multiple drugs targeting the same disease or
Clinical effects of biomarker-type targeted therapies. The platform tests usually maintain the test
The test will be carried out for a long time and new experimental drugs will be allowed to be added to the test platform at any time. At the same time,
Comparator medications may also change over time.

Although master protocol trials have many advantages, due to their complexity, they are planning, execution, establishment of a unified management structure, especially statistical analysis, etc. Facing greater challenges. If a master protocol trial is planned, all aspects of the trial should be After conducting comprehensive, in-depth and detailed research on various issues that may be involved in each aspect, Choose carefully again.

Adaptable master plan design means that the master plan design includes one or more

An adaptive design that can flexibly adopt a variety of adaptive adjustments.

For example, adding one or more new sub-plans, ending one or more sub-plans early

case, re-estimate the sample size, adjust the test hypothesis, primary endpoint and main statistics planning methods, or make different adaptive adjustments to different sub-program designs, etc.

(7) Multiple adaptive design

Multiple adaptation design refers to the use of more than one adaptation in an experiment

Experimental design for adjustment methods. All of the adaptive design methods discussed above can

used simultaneously in the same clinical trial. For example, a clinical trial in Phase 1

At the end, the dosage for the next stage is determined, and then the target population can be selected.

The sample size can then be re-estimated.

In principle, if a clinical trial design includes multiple adaptive adjustments

Integration, as long as it meets the requirements of applicability, rationality, completeness and feasibility, many

Heavy adaptive design can be considered. However, due to the complexity of multiple adaptive designs,

Whether it is necessary to introduce too many adaptations in a trial, it is recommended to sponsor

be carefully considered. 4.

Other considerations

(1) Modifications based only on external data

Modifications based solely on external data refer to modifications based solely on

External data that make certain modifications to an ongoing clinical trial are not included in this guide.

In the Guidelines, it is not considered an adaptive modification as defined.

During the course of the trial, there will often be new information related to the trial.

appear, and this information is generally based on information that did not exist at the time of current trial design.

of recently completed experiments or research. Based on external data for an ongoing

Certain modifications to clinical trials must be well-founded and should not undermine the trial

The rationality and completeness of the information must be communicated with the regulatory agency in advance for confirmation.

This can be reflected through amendments to the trial protocol. Sponsors should pay special attention to these revisions

The changes are based solely on external data and not on the results of the ongoing trials themselves.

There may be other unfinished trials of the same drug at the time of the current trial design.

Other trials of the substance are ongoing that are relevant to the current trial and are

are preset during design, this is also considered external data and can be tested through

be reflected in the amendments to the bill.

If the results of a phase II trial need to be used to determine the biological

The threshold value of the marker is determined based on the accumulated data analyzed during the current trial period.

Modifications are classified as adaptive modifications in this guideline. At this time, they need to be adapted to

sexual modification plan.

(2) Other considerations for supervision

As part of the trial protocol, adaptation plans should be included in the clinical trial

Pre-set in the test protocol before starting.

If a sponsor plans to use an adaptive design in a confirmatory trial or

If Bayesian methods or simulation methods are used in statistical inference, the sponsor should

Communicate with regulatory authorities during the plan design stage.

The information submitted by the sponsor in the communication should contain important information to support

Use adaptive design literature and data for regulatory review. accuracy of information

Preparedness should focus on the details of a pre-established adaptation plan, including its appropriate

usefulness, rationality and completeness, etc.

Sponsors should discuss the rationale for adaptive design in communications materials,

Including advantages compared with traditional design, specific problems that need to be solved by adaptive design

The specific problems and solutions, the interpretability of the results after adaptive adjustment, etc.;

It should also include details of predetermined adjustment plans, such as the timing of interim analysis.

time and purpose, statistical rules for determining adaptation, and statistical checks for final analysis.

methods, methods to control Type I error rates, etc.; and key implementation adaptability

Designed operating procedures, specific measures to ensure test integrity, etc.

5. References

- Drug Evaluation Center of the State Drug Administration. Drug Clinical Trial Data Monitoring Committee
 Committee Guiding Principles (Trial). 2020.
- Bauer P, Köhne K. Evaluation of experiments with adaptive interim analyses. Biometrics.1994; 50:1029–1041. corrections. Biometrics.1996; 52:380.
- Bauer P, Kieser M. Combining different phases in the development of medical treatments within a single trial. Statistics in Medicine.1999; 18: 1833-1848.
- Bauer P, Posch M. Letter to the Editor. Modification of the sample size and the schedule of interim analyses in survival trials based on data inspections by H. Schaefer and H.-H. Mueller, Statistics in Medicine 2001; 20: 3741–3751. Statistics in Medicine.2004; 23: 1333–1335.
- Chang M. Adaptive design method based on sum of p-values.
 Statistics in Medicine.2007; 26:2772–2784.
- Chen C, Li X, Li W, Beckman RA. Adaptive Expansion of Biomarker Populations in Phase 3 Clinical Trials. Contemporary Clinical Trials.2018; 71:18-85.
- Chen C, Anderson K, Mehrotra DV, Rubin EH and Tse A. A 2-in-1
 Adaptive Phase 2/3 Design for Expedited Oncology Drug
 Development. Contemporary Clinical Trials.2018; 64:238-242.

- Chen JYH, DeMets DL, Lan GKK. Increasing the sample size when the unblinded interim results is promising. Statistics in Medicine.2004; 23:1023-1038.
- Chow SC. Complex innovative design for NASA clinical trials.
 Academic Journal of Gastroenterology & Hepatology.2020; 2: 1-9.
- 10.Chow SC, Chang M. Adaptive Design Methods in Clinical Trials. CRC Press, 2nd edition.2011.
- 11.Chow SC, Lin M. Analysis of two-stage adaptive seamless trial design. Pharmaceutica Analytica Acta.2015; 6: 341-440.
- 12.Chow SC, Shao J, Wang H, Lokhnygina Y. Sample size calculations in clinical research. Chapman & Hall/CRC, 3rd edition.2018.
- 13.Chow SC, Tu YH. On two-stage seamless adaptive design in clinical trials. Journal of Formosan Medical Association.2008; 107: s1-59.
- 14.Cui L, Hung HMJ, Wang SJ. Modification of sample size in group sequential clinical trials. Biometrics.1999; 55:853-857.
- 15.Cui L, Zhang L. On the efficiency of adaptive sample size design. Statistics in Medicine.2019;38:933-944.
- 16.Friede T, Kieser M. Sample size recalculation in internal pilot study designs: a review. Biometrical Journal.2006; 48:537–555.
- 17.Friede T, Parsons N, Stallard N. A conditional error function approach for subgroup selection in adaptive clinical trials. Statistics in Medicine.2012; 31:4309–4320.

- 18.Friede T, Stallard Nigel. A comparison of methods for adaptive treatment selection. Biometrical Journal.2008; 50:767–781.
- 19.Gould AL. Interim analyses for monitoring clinical trials that do not materially affect the Type I error rate. Statistics in Medicine.1992; 14:1039-1051.
- 20.Hochberg Y. A sharper Bonferroni procedure for multiple tests of significance. Biometrika.1988; 75: 800–802.
- 21.Howard DR, Brown JM, Todd S, Gregory WM. Recommendations on multiple testing adjustment in multi-arm trials with a shared control group. Statistical Methods in Medical Research.2018 ÿ 27:1513-1530.
- 22.Jenkins M, Stone A, Jennison C. An adaptive seamless phase II/III design for oncology trials with subpopulation selection using correlated survival endpoints. Pharmaceutical Statistics.2011; 10:347–356.
- 23.Lan KG, DeMets DL. Discrete Sequential Boundaries for Clinical Trials. Biometrika.1983; 70:659–663.
- 24.Lehmacher W, Wassmer G. Adaptive sample size calculations in group sequential trials. Biometrics.1999; 55: 1286–1290.
- 25.Maca J, Bhattacharya S, Dragalin S. et al. Adaptive Seamless Phase II/III Designs Background, Operational Aspects, and Examples. Drug Information Journal.2006; 40: 463-474.

- 26.Marcus R, Peritz E, Gabriel KR. On closed testing procedures with special reference to ordered analysis of variance. Biometrika.1976;
 63:655–660.
- 27.Mehta CR, Pocock SJ. Adaptive increase in sample size when interim results are promising: a practical guide with examples.Statistics in Medicine.2001; 30:3267- 3284.
- 28.Müller HH, Schäfer H. Adaptive group sequential designs for clinical trials: Combining the advantages of adaptive and of classical group sequential approaches. Biometrics.2001; 57:886–891.
- 29.Müller HH, Schäfer H. A general statistical principle for changing a design any time during the course of a trial. Statistics in Medicine.2004; 23:2497–2508.
- 30.O'Brien PC, Fleming TR. A Multiple Testing Procedure for Clinical Trials. Biometrics.1979; 549–556.
- 31.Pocock SJ. Group Sequential Methods in the Design and Analysis of Clinical Trials. Biometrika.1977; 64:191–199.
- 32.Proschan MA, Hunsberger SA. Designed extension of studies based on conditional power. Biometrics.1995; 51:1315–1324.
- 33.Rosenblum M, Van Der Laan MJ. Optimizing randomized trial designs to distinguish which subpopulations benefit from treatment.Biometrics. 2011; 98: 845-860.

- 34.Shih WJ. Sample size re-estimation a journey for a decade. Statistics in Medicine.2001; 20:515-518.
- 35.Shih WJ, Li G, Wang Y. Methods for flexible sample-size design in clinical trials: Likelihood, weighted, dual test, and promising zone approaches. Contemporary Clinical Trials.2016; 47: 40-48.
- 36.Simes RJ. An improved Bonferroni procedure for multiple tests of significance. Biometrika.1986; 73:751–754.
- 37.Stallard N, Hamborg T, Parsons N, Friede T. Adaptive designs for confirmatory clinical trials with subgroup selection. Journal of Biopharmaceutical Statistics.2014; 24:168–187.
- 38.Wang SJ, Hung HMJ, O'Neill RT. Adaptive patient enrichment designs in therapeutic trials. Biometrical Journal.2009; 51:358–374.
- 39.Wassmer G, Brannath W. Group sequential and confirmatory adaptive designs in clinical trials. Springer,2016.
- 40.Wu PS, Lin M, Chow SC. On sample size estimation and reestimation adjusting for variability in confirmatory trials. Journal of Biopharmaceutical Statistics.2016; 26:44-54.
- 41.Zhang JJ, Blumenthal G, He K, Tang S, Cortazar P, Sridhara R. Overestimation of the effect size in group sequential trials. Clinical Cancer Research.2012; 18: 4872-4876.

42.Zheng J, Chow SC. Criteria for dose-finding in two-stage seamless adaptive design. Journal of Biopharmaceutical Statistics.2019; 29: 908-919. Appendix: Glossary

Adaptive design : According to a preset plan, the data accumulated during the trial are used to make corresponding modifications to the trial during the interim analysis.

clinical trial design.

Group sequential design (Group sequential design): refers to the plan in advance

Plan to conduct one or more interim analyzes during the course of the trial, with each

The results of the analysis are used to make experimental design decisions for subsequent experiments.

Blinded/Non-comparative analysis method:

It means that the actual trial grouping information is not used in the interim analysis, or no involvement is made.

and analysis of comparisons between groups.

Unblinded/Comparative analysis method (Unblinded/Comparative

analysis): refers to the use of trial grouping information (including the

real name or distinguishable grouping code), the analysis involves between-group

Compare.

Master protocol with adaptive designs:

It refers to a design that includes one or more adaptive adjustments in the main scheme design.

Multiple adaptive design : refers to an experiment

An experimental design in which more than one adaptation method is used.

Bayesian method : Bayesian method generally refers to the

When making statistical inferences about unknown parameters, it first uses prior information (the prior distribution function

(number) makes an initial judgment on unknown parameters. After collecting new data, it makes an initial judgment based on

Bayes' principle summarizes prior information and new data in another function (posterior

distribution function) and make statistical inferences based on this posterior distribution.

Simulation method : refers to the use of computer technology to create

Create virtual patient data and predict patient clinical outcomes based on pre-specified models

results to simulate the conduct of clinical trials.